UNITED
CER

International Convention Distr.
o _ GENERAL
on the Elimination
CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1046
of all Forms of 24 Septenber 1996
Racial Discrimination ENGLI SH

Oiginal: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Forty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECCORD OF THE 1046t h MEETI NG
Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 3 August 1994, at 3 p.m

Chairman: M. GARVALOV

CONTENTS

Consi deration of reports, conments and infornmation submtted by States parties
under article 9 of the Convention (continued)

Ninth and tenth periodic reports of Senega

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee at
this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 94-18237 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p. m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Ninth and tenth periodic reports of Senegal (CERD ¢/ 209/ Add. 7)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. GQuissé and M. Ndiaye (Senegal)
took places at the Committee table.

2. M. GU SSE (Senegal), introducing his country's tenth periodic report
(CERD/ C/ 209/ Add. 7), recalled the tokens of conmitment to denocracy and respect
for human rights which Senegal had given since its accession to nationa
sovereignty. Upon acceding to i ndependence his country had recognized itself
as bound by all the legal instrunents relating to human rights to which
France, the forner colonial Power, had been a party. Senegal was now party to
sone 60 international instruments relating to human rights and humani tari an
law and duly submitted the periodic reports it was required to present under

ni ne of those instrunents to the conpetent bodies. Wth nore particul ar
reference to discrimnation, he said that in addition to the Convention on the
Elimnation of AIl Fornms of Racial Discrimnation, Senegal was party to the
Convention on the Elimnation of Al Fornms of Discrinination Agai nst Wnen,

I LO Convention No. 111 concerning Discrimnation (Enmploynment and Cccupati on),
and the UNESCO Convention agai nst Discrimnation in Education

3. The Senegal ese authorities, convinced that discrimnation formed the
basis of all fornms of human rights violations and that the persistence of
certain forns of discrimnation born of colonization and conducive to racia
and ethnic tensions represented a danger for a young State, had fornulated a
genui ne policy for national integration and for the prevention and puni shrment
of all forms of discrimnation. Thus, article 1 of the Constitution
procl ai ned the denocratic, secular and social character of the Republic of
Senegal , prohibited all political parties and all associations from

i dentifying thenselves with any one race, ethnic group, sect, |anguage or
religion, and proclaimed the right of all citizens to be elected by universa
suffrage and to exercise any political function. That policy had al so found
concrete expression in the elaboration of a cultural charter and the creation
of a social franmework propitious to the cultivation of fraternity, solidarity
and mutual understandi ng, the establishnent of the Les Miutants university and
of an institute for human rights and peace, and the setting up of a structure
for the pronotion of the national |anguages and of literacy.

4, Article 4 of the Constitution proclained the equality of all before the
law, and the State did not call for any special neasure to ensure the
advancenent of particular social, ethnic, |anguage or religious groups to the
detriment of others. Equality before the | aw was further concretized by the
conti nuous strengthening of the i ndependence of the judiciary and freedom of
access of all citizens to the courts. Senegal had incorporated inits
donestic |law the essential contents of the international conventions to which
it was party, thereby guaranteeing all the rights protected by those
instruments. Tol erance and respect of diversity had al ways been vi ewed as
essential factors contributing to equilibriumand nmutual enrichnent in
Senegal



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 3

5. M. DI ACONU (Rapporteur for Senegal) said that Senegal's will to found
the State and the life of society upon the prinacy of |aw was evident.

Senegal was party to a great nunber of international instrunents covering all
aspects of human rights; it had recently reorganized the judicial machinery,
whi ch included a Constitutional Council, a Council of State, a Court of
Cassation and a Hi gher Council of the Judiciary; its |egislation was probably
anong those nost in conformity with the Convention in that it condemed al
acts of racial, ethnic or religious discrimnation, prohibited al
associ ati ons whose activities were likely to put into practice racial or
ethnic discrimnation or incite to such discrimnation, prohibited the

di ssem nation of ideas founded upon racial superiority or hatred, and treated
such acts as crinminal offences. Finally, international human rights

i nstruments took precedence in Senegal over the country's donestic |aws.

6. Wl | -docunmented as it was, the report of Senegal neverthel ess renai ned
silent on several points. It said nothing about the actual inplenentation of
the national laws. It would be interesting to know whet her the provisions of

those | aws had been i nvoked before Senegal ese courts, whether any associations
had been banned, and whet her any perpetrators of acts of racial discrimnation
had been punished. He drew attention to certain divergencies between the
denographic data in respect of the Wl of, Peul, Serer and other popul ations
appearing in the report under consideration and those given in the

ei ghth report. The concentration of populations in certain parts of the
country could stand in the way of efforts to ensure equality of rights and the
i mpl enent ati on of provisions adopted to that end in the fields of nationality,
worren's rights, education, social welfare, famly |law, elections and econom c,
social and cultural rights. Mre than 80 per cent of the country's industria
and comercial activities and sonme 40 per cent of the population, for the nost
part Wbl of, were concentrated in the Dakar area. Experience showed that
unequal economni c devel opnent of different parts of a country, especially if
they were inhabited by different ethnic groups, was a source of discrimnation

bet ween vari ous popul ati on groups and, consequently, of conflicts. |In the
case under consideration, the economic structure superinposed on the ethnic
structure did, perhaps, entail inequalities in the enjoynent of economc,

social and cultural rights, which might explain the D ola separatist novenent
of Casanance and the persistence of that conflict despite repeated cease-fire
agreenments. Wile the Conmittee certainly did not encourage separati st
novenents, it had a duty to assure itself that situations such as those in
Casanance, which was characterized by pitched battles, bonbings and the
shifting of popul ations, were not due to the fact that the needs of certain
regi ons and, consequently, of certain ethnic groups had been neglected. The
Conmittee would like to have further information on the situation in that
regi on and on the nmeasures which the Governnent intended to take to resolve
the problem and prevent its recurrence el sewhere. It would also like to know
whet her interventions by the armed forces and the police in the region were
perceived by the |l ocal population as acts of repression of one ethnic group by
anot her .

7. What place did the five ethnic groups referred to in paragraph 62 of the
report occupy in the Government, in Parlianent and in the adm nistration? It
woul d be hel pful to have econonic and social data supplied for each of the
country's regions. He requested the representative of Senegal to suppl enment
the informati on contained in paragraphs 17 and 18 of the report by indicating



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 4

t he | anguages used for teaching in the large regions inhabited by those five
et hni ¢ groups, the number of schools, the types of school and the nunber of
students, and by specifying how different cultures could express thenselves -
t hrough publications, plays, nuseuns of history and civilization, etc. - and
what was the level of literacy in the country's different regions. Another
query related to the fate of people who had fled fromthe conflict area on the
frontier between Senegal and Mauritania. The QAU had established a nediation
conmi ssion to try to resolve that problem and the Committee would like to
know whet her the refugees had been able to return hone. Senegal also had a
foreign popul ati on which, according to the report, nunbered a nillion people,
or 15 per cent of the total population. In addition to the information

al ready supplied, the Committee would like to know the foreigners' countries
of origin, their possibilities of access to work and to education, and what
was bei ng done by way of preservation of their national identity.

8. Lastly, two provisions of the Senegal ese Constitution called for
clarification. First, there was article 4, which prohi bited any regionali st
propaganda prejudicial to the internal security of the State. Then there was
article 3 (1) of the Constitution under which political parties were
prohibited fromidentifying with one race or ethnic group. The Committee
woul d I'i ke to know how that provision should be understood and to what exactly
it corresponded in practice.

9. M. WO FRUM asked for clarification of paragraph 15 of the report, where
it was stated, on the one hand, that article 4 of the Senegal ese Constitution
condemmed all forns of racial discrimnation and, on the other hand, that the
definition of racial discrimnation which appeared in article 1 of the

I nternational Convention on the Elinination of Al Forns of Racia

Di scrimnati on was not included in that Constitution. In order to be able to
condemn racial discrimnation, it seenmed to himessential, to provide a
definition thereof, preferably in the light of article 1 of the Convention

I n paragraph 22, which dealt with the inplenmentation of article 4 of the
Convention, it was stated that article 3 of the Constitution prohibited
political parties fromidentifying with one race, ethnic group, sect,
religion, etc. Such a prohibition, which was quite comon, did not properly
speaki ng constitute inplenentation of article 4 of the Convention. He asked
whet her any political parties had actually been prohibited under article 3 of
the Constitution.

10. The Human Ri ghts Conmittee understood Casanmance to be or to have been in
a state of siege. It would be helpful if the representative of Senegal were
to describe the situation and indicate what restrictions the state of siege
entail ed and for whom whether negotiations between the Diola and the

Senegal ese authorities were actually taking place, and where those
negoti ati ons stood. The Committee had | earned that 992 persons had been

i mprisoned in the region in 1991 and that 24 of them had not yet reappeared.

It would like to know where matters stood with the investigation, if any, into
that situation.

11. Ms. SADIQ ALI said that she interpreted the conflict in Casanance to
represent the reaction of the Diola population to the arrival of the Wl of
people fromthe north of the country, who were behaving |ike col onizers. She
was al arned by the flare up of violence in the region despite the 1991




CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 5

agreenment between the Senegal ese Governnent and the separatists. The arny,

whi ch until mid-March 1993 had been under orders to remain on the defensive,
was now pursuing the attackers to their bases along the border with

Qui nea- Bi ssau. That devel opnent corresponded to the arrival in Casanance of
the elite corps of the Senegal ese army. She asked whether military activity
had now been replaced by diplomatic initiatives, and al so wi shed to know what
had been the result of the agreenent with Mauritania, particularly with regard
to displaced persons, who were reported to be experiencing all kinds of
difficulties in returning hone.

12. I n paragraph 51 of the report it was stated that freedom of association
was established in article 9 of the Constitution. However, three opposition
deputi es and 84 other people were reported to have been arrested in Dakar in
Novenber 1992 and sentenced to six nmonths in prison for taking part in an
unaut hori zed denonstration. Sone of those people's defence | awers had not
even been heard before the passing of the sentence. The denonstration in
guesti on had been held in support of the country's civil servants, whose

sal ary had been cut by 15 per cent. The Conmittee knew nothing about the fate
of those persons.

13. Informati on was al so | acking on the situation in the area of educati on.
Budget cuts had led to restrictions on school enrolnment with a viewto
reduci ng the nunber of candi dates for posts in the public sector. The

Conmi ttee on Econonmic, Social and Cultural Rights had expressed its concern in
that connection as well as over the high proportion of drop-outs from
techni cal secondary eduction. As for trade union rights, the Comrittee noted
with concern that foreign workers were barred from hol ding trade union office
and that the authorities could restrict the right to strike by inposing

conpul sory arbitration.

14. M. VALENCI A RODRI GJEZ wel coned the very full report introduced by the
Senegal ese del egati on, which supplied inportant information and showed t hat,
basi cally, Senegal was fulfilling its obligations under the Convention.

Mor eover, consideration of the report was facilitated by the fact that it was
drafted in accordance with the guidelines established by the Conmittee.

15. The Senegal ese popul ati on was conposed of several ethnic groups, anong
whi ch the Wl of constituted a clear majority (43.7 per cent). That showed the
i mportance of the Convention for Senegal. Qher positive factors which
energed fromthe report included the fact that Senegal had acceded to a

consi derabl e nunber of international instrunments for the pronotion and
protection of human rights and that, in its domestic legal order, treaties

t ook precedence over national |aws. The fact that the Senegal ese Constitution
contai ned no definition of racial discrimnation (para. 15 of the report) was
not an obstacle to conpliance with the obligations inposed by the Convention
al though it woul d obviously be preferable if a closer |ink was established
between article 1 of the Convention and article 4 of the Senegal ese
Constitution.

16. Wth regard to condemation of all racial propaganda and organi zati ons
practising such propaganda (art. 4 of the Convention), the information
supplied in paragraphs 22 to 30 of the report indicated that article 3 of the
Constitution, the Crinminal Code and the Acts of 4 January 1979 and



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 6

10 Decenber 1981 nmade it possible to conply with that obligation. It was
necessary to know, however, whether those provisions were applied in practice.
The information in paragraphs 31 to 81 relating to the rights protected under
article 5 of the Convention was very detail ed, and he wi shed to thank the
Senegal ese del egation for supplying it. The information relating to the right
to public health, nedical care, social security and social services (para. 62
of the report) showed that Senegal, a devel opi ng country, was naking

consi derable efforts to inprove the standard of living of its popul ation
Lastly, he wel coned the information concerning neasures taken to conbat al
fornms of discrimnation (paras. 84 to 86 of the report), and congratul ated
Senegal on its achi evenents.

17. M. de GOUTTES said that the consideration of the report of Senegal was
of very great interest to the Conmittee for two reasons. First, Senega
occupi ed an inportant strategic position in Africa; as well as being closely
linked with other countries in the region, it also had ancient ties with
Europe and the Arab world. That strategic inportance was further enhanced at
present by the dramatic events taking place in nearby Rwanda and Burundi and
by the role Senegal might be called upon to play in resolving those regiona
crises. Secondly, Senegal was also a country where certain inter-ethnic
probl ems existed, in particular in Casanance. As the Committee was aware, in
Africa inter-ethnic problens were anong the nost serious and pernanent causes
of mass violations of human rights, discrimnation and, sonetinmes, politica
oppression. Hence the interest in |learning what Senegal, for its part, was
doing to forestall the deterioration of certain inter-ethnic tensions within
its territory. Hence, too, the vigilance that the Conmittee nust exercise
"before the fire" in order to prevent discrimnnation

18. Senegal deserved to be commended for the regularity with which it
submitted its reports - of which the one under consideration at present was
the tenth - and al so for having nade the declaration provided for in

article 14 of the Convention, which placed it anmong the minority of countries
that accepted the principle of individual communications.

19. It was worth noting the contrast between the precise and detail ed

information relating to the inplenentation of articles 2, 3 and 4 of the
Convention and the too general and too abstract information relating to

articles 5 (especially), 6 and 7. He urged Senegal to focus particul ar

attention on those three articles in its next report.

20. Al though the matter did not fall directly within the ternms of reference
of the Cormittee, he would be glad to have sonme additional explanations
concerning the independent judiciary referred to in the report (paras. 3 and
5). How was it organi zed? What constitutional guarantees of independence did
it enjoy inrelation to the executive? How were nmenbers of the H gher Counci
of the Judiciary, the Constitutional Council, the Council of State and the
Court of Cassation appointed?

21. Further, how was the Senegal ese Human Rights Conmittee referred to in
paragraph 6 organi zed? How were its nmenbers appoi nted? Wat were its powers?
Di d the nunerous non-governnmental organizations concerned with promoting human
rights in Senegal participate in its work? The formulation of a nationa
cultural charter (para. 18) was an original and interesting experinment. Could



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 7

t he Senegal ese del egation provide additional information on that subject?

Par agraphs 22 to 30 of the report provided an exhaustive anal ysis of the
provisions of the Criminal Code which sanctioned all forns of racism and
denonstrated that, in conformity with article 4 of the Convention, Senega
possessed a very conprehensive set of laws in that field. Wat was clearly

| acki ng, however, were practical exanples of the application of those
provisions: nunber of conplaints, of prosecutions, of convictions for racist

acts - in other words, court statistics.

22. Senegal had, in principle, proclaimed itself a secular Republic
(para. 17) although it was a country with a very large Muslimmajority
(94 per cent of the popul ation, according to paragraph 62). It would be

interesting for the Cormittee to | earn how t he Senegal ese CGovernnent was
succeeding in reconciling those two facts, which could sonetinmes create
difficulties. Like other speakers, he had noted that the tenth report of
Senegal made no reference to the serious confrontations taking place in the
Casanance region inhabited by the Dyola ethnic mnority. According to

avail abl e information, the popul ations of villages in the region had suffered
fromacts of violence coomitted by the arny, as well as by the Casanance
Denocratic Forces Movenent (MFDC). According to information provided by

the organi zation ARI'S, a cease-fire agreenent between the Government and the
M-DC had been concluded on 8 July 1994 and might enter into force at the end
of the year. Could the Senegal ese del egati on provide informtion on that
subj ect ?

23. M. SHAH said that he shared the concerns already expressed about the
situation in the Casamance region and wi shed to know what was the situation
with regard to the cease-fire agreenent, which had just been nentioned, and
any measures taken to resolve internal tensions in the region. He would also
like to know what was the approxi mate nunber of Africans from nei ghbouring
countries and of Europeans, respectively, anmong the nillion foreigners in
Senegal . I n paragraph 8 of the tenth report it was stated that the country
was party to 26 international human rights instrunments, yet he understood
M. Quissé to have spoken of some 60 such instruments. Could the Senegal ese
del egation clarify that point? He welconmed the attachnent to human rights
shown by Senegal, a country which played an inportant role in internationa
politics, in the O ganization of African Unity and in the Islam c Conference
Organi zation. That attachnment should serve as a nodel to other devel oping
countri es.

24, M. FERRERO COSTA asked what role the Senegal ese Human Rights Committee,
responsi ble for coordinating activities to pronote hunan rights in Senega
(para. 6 of the report), had played since its establishnent back in 1970. Had
it proved equal to the task of resolving possible racial discrimnation

probl ens? He al so wished to know how the nmechani smfor the incorporation of

i nternational instruments in Senegal ese | aw, which gave them precedence over
nati onal |egislation, operated (end of para. 8). He was raising that

qguestion, in particular, because in paragraph 15 of the report it was stated
that the definition of racial discrimnation provided in article 1 of the
Convention was not included in the Senegal ese Constitution. |f the Convention
was i ncorporated in Senegal ese national law, did not the definition appearing
inarticle 1 of the Convention automatically formpart of that |aw?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 8

25. Senegal had adopted an inpressive nunber of |aws aimed at preventing
racial discrimnation (paras. 22 to 30 of the report, dealing with art. 4 of

t he Convention), and deserved to be congratul ated on that score. However, the
report did not nention the practical inplenentation of those |aws, in other
words the specific policies and programres for their enforcement. He invited
t he Senegal ese del egation to include such information in its next report wth
regard to the inplementation not only of article 4 but also of article 5 of

t he Conventi on.

26. The report provided in paragraph 62 sone statistical informtion on
Senegal ' s denographi ¢ and health situation, which showed that the majority of
t he popul ati on consi sted of Wl of and Peuls (43.7 per cent and 23.2 per cent,
respectively) while the Serer, Dyola and Mandi ngo were, by contrast, in the
mnority. 1In the interest of preventing tensions due to racia

di scrimnation, which was one of the Conmittee's najor concerns, it was

i mportant that the various ethnic groups should be represented in various
official posts (police, magistrature) and in various institutions through

whi ch political, econonmic and social power was exercised, in a proportion
roughly corresponding to their proportion in the country's total popul ation
He requested the Senegal ese delegation to include information on that point in
its next report.

27. M. BANTON associ ated hinself with the previous speakers' renarks. The
report was rich in information about the guarantees which protected human

ri ghts on paper, but gave relatively little information on the inplenentation
and efficacy of the legislation referred to. As M. D aconu had observed,
mlitary or police interventions were sonetines perceived as being ethnically
notivated. Governnments could not really know the truth except by conducting

i nquiries anong the population. That was particularly true with regard to the
rights listed in article 5 of the Convention (right to work, right to housing,
right to social services, etc.). He wondered whether it really never happened
in Senegal that sonmeone was convinced that he had failed to obtain a job, a
dwel ling or a service because he did not, or perhaps because he did, belong to
the Wolof. It was doubtless possible that in certain societies there was no
di scrimnation on grounds of ethnic origin but in order to be credible an
assertion of that kind had to be backed up by concrete evidence, of which

surveys were an exanple. |n the absence of evidence of that kind, the
suspi cion was bound to arise that cases of racial discrimnation did occur
fromtime to time. 1In connection with the right to | egal protection against

discrimnation (art. 6 of the Convention), it was stated that access to the
courts was a fundanmental right for anyone who believed that his rights had
been infringed (para. 82 of the report). That was not enough. The question
was to the extent to which the persons who night be exposed to racial

di scrimnation were aware of that right: did they know they had such a right,
did they know what they had to do to have it recognized, what it would cost

t hem whet her taking such action would be of any use? He hoped that Senega
woul d furnish information of that type in its next report. Failing
gquantitative data, the Conmrittee would be glad to receive estinmtes or
qualitative data, or sone indication of what the situation seenmed to be, even
if that indication could not be backed up by figures.

28. M. SONG said that nost of the legal texts cited in the report dated back
to the 1960s. Had their inplenentation given rise to any difficulties which



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 9

m ght have necessitated changes? The seventh and eighth reports of Senega
had contained certain information in that regard. Had any anendnents been
made to the [aw since 1989 or 19907

29. M. YUTZIS said that he was disturbed by the conflict taking place in
Casanance. According to certain reports, there had been cases of

di sappearances or of persons whose situation was unclear. Could the
Senegal ese del egati on provi de a maxi num of information on that subject?

30. Wth regard to inplenmentation of article 5 of the Convention, the report
referred in its paragraph 40 to the establishnment of a radio and television
supervisory council to manage the use of broadcasting tine during electora
canpai gns. Wat was the conposition of that council? D d it include
representatives of the State or private individuals? |In either case, did it

i nclude representatives of different ethnic groups? |In what proportions?

31. Wth regard to freedom of opinion and expression, paragraph 50 referred
to a wide range of publications and vehicles of opinion and to nunmerous radio
and tel evision stations broadcasting in Senegal. Wo controlled the

tel evision networks in particular, - private legal entities or State bodies?

32. The CHAI RMAN, speaking as a nmenber of the Committee, congratul ated
Senegal on the quality of its periodic report and of the information provided
orally. He had already had occasion to congratul ate Senegal both on its
efforts in the struggl e against racial discrimnation and on its excellent
cooperation with his own country, Bulgaria. There were several questions he
wi shed to put to the Senegal ese del egation. First, like several other nenbers
of the Cormittee, he would like to know the official reasons for which Senega
prohibited the forming of political parties on a religious or ethnic basis.

In that connection, he referred to Bulgaria, whose Constitution (of July 1991)
cont ai ned provisions prohibiting the registration of political parties based
on religious or ethnic notives, but where in fact there existed a party known
as the "Mowvenment for the rights and freedons of Bulgarian citizens", known to
represent Bulgarian citizens of Turkish origin, whose representatives sat in
the Parlianent, participated in elections and exercised a not inconsiderable

i nfluence over the two main parties in the Bulgarian National Assenbly. He
poi nted out that such a situation, which frankly seened a little worrying to
West ern European countries, was accepted without great difficulty in Africa
and Asi a.

33. Turning to the statistics of Senegal's denographic and health situation
given in paragraph 62 of the tenth periodic report, he said that they did not
provi de an exact picture of the ethnic conposition of the Senegal ese

popul ation. It would be nore useful to break down the data by ethnic groups.
He noted with satisfaction however, that Senegal had adopted constitutiona
and | egislative provisions that prohibited discrimnation on racial grounds,
and he associated hinmself with those nmenbers of the Conmittee who had asked
for additional information on judiciary and adninistrative practice in the
country. Could Senegal nention any specific cases of persons subjected to

di scrimnation by reason of their ethnic or national origin?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 10

34. M. GUJ SSE (Senegal), referring to the question of the inplenentation of
provi sions designed to prevent racial discrimnation, said that in order to
prevent and punish discrimnatory practices Senegal had i ncorporated various
international instrunents in its national |egislation. Those provisions had
been promnul gated, incorporated in donestic |aw and brought to the know edge of
judges. For a provision of the law to be applied, the victimof an offence
had to bring the case before the conpetent court. The Procurator of the
Republic or any other judicial authority could automatically bring a case
before a court after finding that a discrininatory practice had taken pl ace,
but that had not happened in the past 23 years. During the time in which he
had held the position of head of the Court of Criminal Jurisdiction, no case
of discrimnatory practice had been brought before any court. 1In addition to
maki ng the | aw generally known to the public, Senegal had given the provisions
aimred at preventing and puni shing discrimnatory practices wide publicity
through radio, television and the press. G tizens were therefore inforned of
the contents of those provisions and could bring cases before the courts

wi t hout incurring any costs whatever

35. Turning to the question of the ethnic conposition of the Senegal ese
popul ati on, he expl ained that the denographic statistics were inadequate
because censuses were carried out, not horizontally, but vertically; in other
words, figures were arrived at, not on the basis of regions, but on the basis
of ethnic groups which were often conposed of nomads travelling fromplace to
place with their herds. The statistical data were therefore distorted and
varied fromone period to another. He also explained that Toucoul eurs and
Peul s constituted the same ethnic group, the nane Peul being used to designate
the ethnic group all of whose nenbers spoke the sane dial ect, known as
"Toucoul eur".

36. As for the inbal ance whereby 85 per cent of Senegal's industry was
concentrated in the Cap-Vert region, inhabited by 40 per cent of the

popul ation, while the rest of the country outside Dakar, inhabited by the
remai ni ng 60 per cent, accounted for only 15 per cent of industrial activity,
he considered it to be a result of colonization. Wen Dakar had been the
capital of the vast federation of French West Africa, investors had preferred
to invest in the Cap-Vert region rather than penetrate into the interior of
the country. After independence, Senegal had tried to diversify its industry
and had opted for modernizing its agriculture, so that the country m ght

achi eve food self-sufficiency within a short tinme. Thus, the

i ndustrialization of Cap-Vert dated back to the colonial era. He recalled

t hat Senegal was an essentially peasant and pastoral devel oping country, a

de facto situation which was in no way a source of discrimnatory practices

i ntended to place particular regions in an unfavourable position. Senegal was
maki ng efforts to halt rural depopulation and to stabilize the distribution of
t he popul ation across its territory. However, the popul ati on was concentrat ed
above all in Dakar and other |arge towns which offered nore nunerous work
opportuniti es.

37. Replying to M. Diaconu, who had asked whether interventions by the arny
and the police in the Casamance regi on were not perceived by the | oca
popul ati on as acts of oppression of one ethnic group by another, he said that
he sincerely did not think that was so. The Senegal ese public forces were
recruited fromanmong all Senegal ese citizens, irrespective of the ethnic group



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1046
page 11

to which they bel onged. Thus, the head of the General Staff of the Arny cane
from eastern Senegal while the chief of the national gendarnerie cane fromthe
south and many officers of different ethnic origins occupied various posts in
Dakar. Senegal practised no distinction at the level of its authorities,

whet her political or traditional, and respected all ethnic groups. To prevent
any m sunderstandi ng, he pointed out that certain Senegal ese were identified
by the Wl of dialect, which now characterized an ethnic group. French, which
was the official |anguage of Senegal, was used for teaching in the main
regions of the country. Existing national |anguages were at present the

subj ect of special studies and were being transcribed. They were now being
used inter alia, in the newspaper Soleil du Sénégal by agreenment with the
journalists working on that paper. Wl of, the spoken | anguage, had actually
become the country's commrercial |anguage. The cultural diversity of the
ethnic groups was reflected in the theatre and in scul pture and painting in
the different regions. Being aware of the inportance of literacy to its
econoni ¢ devel opnment, Senegal had introduced a functional literacy programre
directly connected with the beneficiaries' occupation or profession. By
arousing their interest, the programme enabl ed the persons concerned to apply
the contents of the teaching they received to their daily tasks.

38. Turning to the question of the conflict between Senegal and Mauritania,
he said that Senegal did not forbid Mauritanians to enter its territory.
Senegal ese and Mauritanians were jointly exploiting the valley of the Senega
Ri ver, and considerable efforts were being nade to establish peace in the
val l ey. The question of refugee popul ati ons was receiving particul ar
attention, and the H gh Conm ssioner for Refugees was assisting Senegal in
managi ng the day-to-day problens of Muritanian refugees. The latter were as
wel | treated as the Senegal ese thensel ves and in nmany cases were well
integrated in the country. Wth regard to the nunber of foreigners in Senega
(approximately 1 million), he said that it was very difficult to give an exact
figure for the foreign population. Senegal had never refused an entry visa
except for security reasons. As censuses did not distinguish between the
sedentary and transient popul ati ons, he was unable to give any ot her

i nformati on on that point.

39. Turning to the question of article 4 of the Constitution prohibiting any
regi onal i st propaganda prejudicial to the internal security of the State, he
said that Senegal's mmin concern upon acceding to i ndependence had been to
consolidate the country and strengthen the foundati ons of the Senegal ese
nation. Article 4 of the Constitution derived directly fromthe idea that al
Senegal ese, from whatever regi on, should be consi dered Senegal ese national s
first and forenost, irrespective of the particular region they m ght bel ong
to. The article was preventive in nature, and it was with the same object in
m nd that Senegal had prohibited the establishnment of political parties based
on ethnic or religious considerations. That policy was in no way an obstacle
to the creation of political parties, of which there were 17 in Senegal .

40. Wth regard to the fact, nentioned by M. Diaconu, that the Senegal ese
Constitution contained no definition of discrimnation, he explained that
Senegal had ratified the International Convention on the Elinmnation of A
Forms of Racial Discrimnation, as a result of which the Convention as a
whol e had been incorporated in Senegal ese internal |aw and coul d, under
Senegal ese | aw, be applied by a national court. Furthernore, the



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1046
page 12

Senegal ese National Assenbly had adopted national |aws and |egislative
provi sions (draft decrees) which expressly institutionalized the struggle
agai nst discrimnatory practices. The definition of discrimnation as it
appeared in the Convention was enshrined in Senegal ese national |aw as a
consequence of the Convention's ratification

41. It was true that separatist novenents in Casanmance had attenpted to
secede, an attenpt which Senegal, |ike other countries, obviously could not
accept. In certain cases it had been necessary to re-establish |aw and order

and when certain people refused the established order a nmeasure of viol ence
becane unavoidable if order was to be nmintained. He w shed to stress that
many peopl e in Casamance had never wanted secession and that the Governnent
had, fromthe start, established a reconciliation conm ssion, essentially
conposed of inhabitants of Casanance, to work towards peace and under st andi ng
anong all Senegal ese. The commission's activities had been crowned with
success; there had been a cease-fire and an agreenent had been concl uded and
was being respected. The reconciliation conm ssion was nevert hel ess
continuing its task of re-establishing confidence and unity so that no region
of the country should find itself in a narginalized position

42. In that connection, he pointed out that Senegal was a devel opi ng country,
that the economi c situation in Casamance was rather better than that in the

ot her regions, and that the Government was doi ng everything possible to open
it up. It had been alleged that nmen had conme into the region fromthe North
and had settled and seized land there. But there were also nen fromthe South
to be found in the northern regions; in Senegal, popul ations noved all over
the country, influenced by circunstances and natural phenonena, such as
drought. It was correct to say that a state of energency had been declared in
Casanance for a certain period, follow ng serious and fatal disturbances that
had necessitated intervention. He wi shed to enphasize that only m ni num
neasures had been taken under the state of energency; freedom of novement had
been imted, but no restrictions had been inposed upon the press. The state
of energency had been proclainmed solely with the object of re-establishing
order and had been of short duration, the authorities having lifted it as soon
as the situation permitted. Wth regard to enforced di sappearances, he knew

t hat thorough investigations had been | aunched by the conpetent authorities -
the mlitary, the gendarnerie or the police - but he did not know the results.
As far as he was aware, those investigations were still in progress and he had
no doubt that their conclusions would be reflected in Senegal's next report.

43. Ms. Sadiqg Ali had referred to invasion of the southern regions by

popul ations fromthe north. The termwas incorrect. True, people fromthe
north had noved from drought-affected areas to the better-irrigated Casamance
region to cultivate |l ands that had bel onged to nobody, although clains to
their ownership had been nmade later. It was not possible, under those
circunstances, to speak of a second col oni zati on. Everyone in Senegal was
free to nove fromplace to place, people travelled about and settled down
during the winter nmonths to till the land. It was, rather, in the north, in
t he devel oped vall ey where major industrialists were gradually displacing the
smal | hol ders, that the term"invasion" could be applied. M. Sadiq Ali had
al so raised the question of displaced persons fromMauritania. It was true
that during the conflict which had broken out in that country, a |arge numnber
of Mauritani ans had been displaced across the river and had settled in



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 13

Senegal , considering thensel ves to be refugees; Senegal had accepted them by
virtue of the international conventions. Little by little, however, a return
novenment was begi nning to take place; there was even sone question of those
persons being given back their property, in particular, which had been
confiscated. GCenerally speaking, the situation with regard to Mauritani a was
in process of normalization.

44, It was correct that 3 deputies and 93 ot her persons had been arrested
foll owi ng several assassinations. The suspects had been arrested upon

denunci ation. As in French law, there existed under Senegal ese |aw two forns
of procedure. Under the first, when an offence took place, an investigation
was initiated by the exam ning magi strate and the case was referred to the
State Prosecutor, who drew up the indictnment; the second procedure, which was
enployed in the case of a flagrant offence, was inmediate. Under the norma
procedure it was necessary to establish the constituent elenments of the
offence; if a deputy was involved, the lifting of parliamentary inmunity woul d

have to be requested before the investigation could commence. |f that was
granted, the deputy was heard and, possibly, placed under a warrant of arrest
or released. In the case of the flagrant offence procedure, the facts of the

case formed the constituent elenents of the offence, doubt was not possible,
there was no investigation, and arrest and trial could be proceeded with

i medi ately; hence the question of parlianentary inmunity did not arise. 1In
the case referred to by Ms. Sadiq Ali, the three deputies to whomthe flagrant
of fence procedure had been applied had benefited froma cessation of
proceedi ngs pronounced in full independence by the judges, and were now free.
As for the 93 other persons, they had been released, with the exception of

t hose whose direct participation in the nurders had been established beyond
guestion. However, even anpbng those persons there had been sone rel eases on
nmedi cal grounds.

45, It was true that the education budget had been cut, but substantial cuts
had al so been nmade in other sectors, such as health, justice and the arned
forces. That regrettable state of affairs was due to the economi c situation,
whi ch had obliged Senegal to devaluate its currency and to nake a general cal
for sacrifices in all areas. As for the nunerous educational failures also
reported by Ms. Sadiq Ali, they too were connected with the country's |evel of
econom ¢ devel opnment; education was an econonic right whose gradua
realization the Senegal ese Government was endeavouring to achieve.

46. M. Val enci a Rodriguez had nmentioned the relationship between article 1
of the Convention and article 4 of the Senegal ese Constitution. It was true
that at the outset the Iink between the two had not, perhaps, been very clear
but in any event the act of ratifying the Convention had had the effect of
incorporating its provisions into the internal law. The authorities would
seek to ensure a better understanding of that aspect in the future.

47. M. de CGouttes had asked what was being done to forestall explosions of
ethnic strife in Senegal. No specific nmeasures were contenplated in that
respect, with the exception of certain |legal steps, particularly the

prohi bition of establishnent of parties on the basis of ethnic origin. In any
case, the Casamance problemwas not ethnic in nature; there was no ethnic
problemin Senegal, and the neasures were purely preventive.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1046
page 14

48. The Senegal ese judicial machinery was nodel |l ed on the French system The
judicial organs were nore or less the sanme in both countries: Constitutiona
Council, Council of State, Court of Cassation, appeal courts and, lastly,

regi onal and departmental courts. The Hi gher Council of the Judiciary was
conposed of the heads of each of these organs as well as of elected
representatives of judges at all levels. Senegal's Human Rights Conmittee was
conposed of representatives of ninisterial departnents and various
personalities chosen in the light of their special abilities and their

interest in human rights. In the past, one of the Conmittee's essentia
activities had consisted in receiving spokesnen of the npbst representative
non- gover nnent al organi zations, sinply upon the latter's request. |Its nost

i mportant role, however, had been one of explanation and popul arization -
acquai nting everyone with their rights, the Iimts of those rights, the forns
of redress that could be expected, etc. As a nenber of the Senegal ese Hunan
Rights Committee, he hinself had for 15 years been responsible for an

i nformation broadcast in the course of which listeners could receive answers
to all kinds of questions. Another part of the Commttee's duties was to
report annually to the Governnment on difficulties encountered in the areas

wi th which the Committee was concerned and on the inplenentation of

i nternational norms; however, so far it had done so only seldom The
Committee was al so called upon to assist the Governnent in decision-nmaking and
| aw nmaki ng by explaining to it the contents of certain provisions. |In future,
the Conmittee would probably play an increasingly inportant role, especially
vVis-a-vis the Governnment, although it was true that the Orbudsman of the
Republic also had inmportant duties in that respect. He was not aware of any
case in which the anti-discrimnation |aws had been applied, but the aws were
there and coul d be invoked at any tinmne.

49, Senegal , the mgjority of whose popul ation were Muslins, was a secul ar
State. The Muslins accepted their Catholic and anim st fellow citizens

wi thout any difficulty because all religions coexisted in the greatest
proximty; there were many fanilies some of whose nmenbers bel onged to one
religion while others professed another and others still, a third. A
Christian bishop nmight receive and pass on to a relative an air ticket for a
pilgrimge to Mecca, a marabout might proclaimhinself to be a Catholic: it
was legitimte to speak of a denocratic pluralismwhere everyone was free to
live as he chose. |If the Muslins, who forned the ngjority, had decided to

i npose thensel ves upon the rest, a fundamentalist State woul d perhaps have
been established, and where would the minorities have been? Secularismwas a
factor of harnmony and social balance, not a source of difficulties.

50. So far as clashes between the arny and the separatists were concerned,
M. Shahi could rest assured that the cease-fire agreement was effectively in
force and that all Senegal ese had now returned to norrmal life. Negotiations
were continuing to consolidate that gain and to ensure that all could live in
harnmony. Wth regard to the country's million foreigners, he pointed out
that, in addition to Africans from nei ghbouring or nore renote countries,
Senegal received many tourists fromall over the world; their nunber, by
definition, fluctuated a great deal and to give a precise figure was not

possi ble. The 26 international instrunments signed by Senegal which were
nmentioned in the report were only those relating to the protection of human



CERD/ C/ SR. 1046
page 15

rights; many others, in a w de range of areas, had of course been signed as
well. Lastly, the incorporation of international norns into internal |aw,
effective inmediately upon ratification, which gave those nornms precedence
over the national |aws, was further strengthened by the incorporation of sone
of their provisions into the Crimnal Code itself, which ensured that judges
woul d take theminto consideration.

51. The CHAI RMAN said that the Committee woul d continue the consideration of
the ninth and tenth periodic reports of Senegal at the follow ng neeting.

52. The del egation of Senegal wi thdrew.

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




